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{806) 636-3566
Fax (806) 636-3569

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tao the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Brownfield, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statemenls of the governmental activitics, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Brownficld, Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
ccntents,

Management’s Responyibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintcnance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
stiatements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Aruditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perforn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Yhe procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk
asscssments, the auditor considers internal contro! relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such copinion.  An awdit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounring estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

[nn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Brownfield, Texas as of
September 30. 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereot
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

ZQ) : ﬁ 604 West Broadway. Brownfictd, TX 79316
: 6 Email: eddy@cddyhollowaycpa.com

Armerican Insilnte of Certified 1uhlic Acconntants « AICPA Division For CPA Firms » Private Companies Practice Sectien
Texas Socwets Certified Poblic Aceoumants




Other Matters
Requived Supplementary Informarion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of” America require that the budgetary comparison
information, the schedules of changes in net pension liability and related ratios. and the schedules of employer
contributions on pages 48-51 be presented 1o supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information.
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, cconomic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with aunditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has clected to omit the management’s discussion and analysis for the year ended September 30,
2019, which is required 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, whe considers it an cssential part of
financial reporting. Our opinions on the basic financial statements are not alTected by this omitted information.

Cther Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
tke City of Brown(ield, Texas™ basic financial statements. ‘The combining schedules of nonmajor governmental
funds are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining schedules of nonmajor goverimental funds arc the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly 10 the underlving accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures apptlied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such informatton
directly to (he underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themsclves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepled in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining schedules of nonmajor
governmental funds are fairly stated, in all material respects. in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole

Respectfully submitted,

Sty Hulliway, A T

Brownlicld, Texas
April 9, 2020
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CITY OF BROWNFILLD, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NLET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

rimary Guvenmment

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Taxes Regeivable, Net
Sales Tuxes Recevable
Jranchise Taxes Receivaile
AotebMotel Taxes Receivable
Acouils Recaivable, Mol
NVENLIMICS
“aventmy - Lamd
1”Zash festricted for Bascbal Complex
Cash Festricted fur Cowrt Technology & Security
Cash Festricted for Park Upkeep & Tmprovements
Cash Fustricted Tor Police Activities
Cash Festricted tor Tourism
Cash Festricted for Uhility Peposns
Notes decervable
Capital Assels:
Land Purchase & Tmprovements
Capital Assets, Net
Investnent in Water Ripghts, Nev of’ Amorbization
Construction in Progress

Restrivted Adsen Net Pension Assel
Total Assels

DEFERRER OUTFLOWS OFF RESOURCES

Deterred Qutiows 1eelated to Pension Blans

Total Deferred Outitows of Resources

BBusiness -
Goverumental Type
Activilies Activities
L 902,287 % IR52.835 %

74,347 -
98804 -
22930 -
66,734 -
4472 739,862
20,070 192,182
693,325 -
57.240 -
8.015 -
31849 -
185,082 -
- 983818
627913 343,103
6.386.797 6¢.986.00
- 3.007.323
5.296,598 197.270
316,587 17,551
14,716.255 16.522,068
1,440,788 689,001
140,788 689.001

3

31238323

EXHIBIT A-1 {Cont'd}

(

Total

4,755,122 %
74.347
08,409
22.930
66.734

144334
212.252
693,525
57,240
8.015
3849
185,082
085818

1171076
13.572.861
3,007,323
5.493. 8068
54,138

129789
2,129,789

‘wmponent Limt

RID Corp

1.499.002

A4 L05

RB0L55

L]
]

193,333

AR.210
48.210

WeHt




LIABILITIES

Accounts Payabie
Accrued Wages & Salarees Pavable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Customer Ltlity Depusits
Honds Payable - Current
Other Carrent Liabilitics
Noncutrent Liabilities:
Londs Payable - Current
Bonds Payable - Noncuoent

Premium on Dond [ssuance, et of Antortization

Landiil Closure & Poselosure Liahlity
Net Pension Lialility

Total Liahilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Deferred Inflows 1elated o Pension Flans

‘Fotal Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net Investment i Capital Assets
Rustricted for:
Restrivted for Courl Security & Teehnology
Rustricted tor Park Upkeep & lmiprovements
Restricted tor Pension
Restricted for Ballpark Complex
Restricted for Police Activities
Restricted tor Tourism
Restricted for Feonmie Development
Unrestricted

Total Net Posttion

Governmental
Activities

75,000
71828
116,134
{2,030

158,000
1,020

2.889.000
16,021
3,343,959

897.6004
8497.614

9164308

57.240
.4H S
36.387
HU3 523
J4u8Y
251817

1,368.9849

CITY OF BROWNFILLD, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Primary Governinent
Business -
Type
Activities

547.137
35,276
35,964

985818

5,182,334

430,165

7.557,706

4.023.313

430.165

Total

623.043
110.204
162098

12.95¢
985818
158,000

26,308

324.871
5427139
313104
306677
16.021

8526293

1,327,379
1.327.779

L7.22.0%1

57.2H)
8015
51138
693,525
31989
251.817

5.392,302

EXHIBIT A-1

Component Linil

I Corp

30,0404

JO094

2630160

$ 1015470 § 11,598,570 S 23.514.040 § 3636166

The notes 1o the [inancial statements ars an integrat pan ol this statement,

4
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR IINDED SEPTEMBER 36, 2019

Progrin Revenues

Caiuutal
Cirants and
Contnbations

5 -
g.000
33513
13513
) 13.513
$ -
% -

Operating
Charges {or Cirants and
lixpenscs Services Contributions
Primary Government:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Legislative S 24552 % -3 -
Judicial 163.08% 137.405 -
General Administration 882,508 137.762 -
Financial 395,183 - -
Police 2.204.646 13,114 15,434
Firc Protection 860,684 . 250,000
Emergency Management & Services 127,581 - -
Protective Inspections 102,378 . -
Highways & Streets 966.399 - 823
Pubtic Services 59,933 - -
Parks & Recreation B30 874 G8,906 310,000
Tourism 88,612 - -
Bond [ssuance Cosls ) 47.000 - -
Towl Governmental Activities 6.773.438 387.277 376,259
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Power & Light Fund 5.622.149 8.232.233 .
Water & Sewer I'und 2.263.886 2,609,767 -
Sanitation Fund 1,633,704 1,627,523 -
CRTC/ISE Facilities Fund 197.020 S o
Total Business-Type Activities 9.716.739 12.469.523 -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT % 16,490,197 % 12,856,800 § 576,239
Componcent Unit; h o ' ST
Ceonomic Development b 531199 § . -
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT $ % - % -

531,199

General Revenues:
l'axes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Huotel/Motel Tax
Franchise Tax
Other Taxes
Penalty & Interest on Taxes
Miscellaneous Revenue
Investment Earnings
Sale of Real & Persanal Property
Transfers In (Out)

Totl General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Pasilion

Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

The noetes to the financizl statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

§

Governmental
Activilies

(24.552) %
(25.683)

1 744,746)
1395,183)
(2,176.098)
{602,684)
(127,581}
(102,378
(960,061}
(59.933)
1441,878)
(88.612)
(47.000)
(5.796,389)

{3,796.389)

1,256,580
1,109,581
216,433
161,523
3590
24,477
231,306
113,927
3530
3306901
6,427 868

631,479
11,283,991

11915470 §

Net (Expense) Revenue anil

Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Husiness-Type
Aclivities

Total

- % (24552 ¥

2,610,084

345,881
(6.181)
(197.020)

2.752.7641

{25.683)
(744,746)
(495.183)

(2,176,098)
(602,684}
(127.581)
(102,378)
(960.061)

159.933)
(141,878)

188.612)

147,000}

(3.796.389)

2.610.084
345.881
(6.181)
L H97.020)

2,752,764

Componoent Uit

BID Comp

2,752,764

(3.0443,623)

(331.199)
{331.199)

90.613

{3.306.901)

1,256,580
1.109.58]
210,433
161,523
3.5%0
241477
231.300
204502
3.550

(1.216.286)

e

tobwd
iJll
=
o

551,790

23
36,398

391.2t1

(463.322)
12.062.092

1598570 %

167.957
23.346.083

23514040 %

60,012
2,570,154

2,636,166

EXHIBIT B-1



EXHIBIT C-1
CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total
General Hher Ciovernmental
lund 1 unls Funds
ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents § 505350 § 396,957 §  902.287
Taxes Receivable 75,864 - 75,864
Allewance for Uncollectible Taxes (Credit) (1,517) - (1,517)
Sales Taxes Receivable 98,809 - 98,809
Franchise Taxes Receivable 22,930 - 22,030
Hotel/Motel Taxes Reccivable - 66,734 66,734
Accounts Receivable, Net 4,472 - 4472
Inventories 20,010 - 20,070
Cash Restricted for Ballpark Complex 693,525 - 693,525
Cash Restricted for Court Technology & Security - 57,240 57.240
Cash Restricted for Park Upkeep & huprovements - 8,015 8,015
Cash Restricted lor Police Activities - 34,849 34,849
Cash Restricted for Tourism - 185,082 185,082
Total Assels $ 1419483 % 748,871 § 2,168,360
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable % 75,9006 § -9 75,906
Accrued Wages & Salaries Pavable 74,928 - 74,528
Accrued Compensated Absences Payasle 116,134 - 116,134
Accrued Interest Payable 12,950 - 12,950
Other Current Liabilities 1,020 - 1,020
Total Liabilitics 280,938 - 280,938
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 65,347 - 65,347
Total Deferred [nflows of Resources 65,347 - 63,347
FUND BALANCES
Inventories 20,070 - 20,070
Restricted for Court Technology & Security - 57,240 57.240
Restricted for Park Upkeep & Improvements - 8,015 8,015
Restricted for Police Activitics - 34,849 34,849
Restricted for Tourism - 251.816 251,816
Restricted for Ballpark Complex 693,525 - 693,525
Assigned for Capital Expenditures for |:quipment - 187,291 187,291
Other Assigined Fund Balance - 209,666 209,666
Unassigned Fund Balance 359,603 - 359,603
Total Fund Balances 1,073,198 748 877 1,822,075

Total Liabiiities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 1419483 § 748,877 § 2,168,360

The notes to the financial statements are an inlegral part of this statement,



EXIIBIT C-2
CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds g 1 822,075

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 9,918,015
therefore arc not reported in governmental funds. In addition, GASB 68 requires the

net pension asset/liability and associated deferred outflows and inflows of resources

to be reported for government-wide purposes, but as they are long-term amounts,

they are not reported in the governmental funds. The net effect of including the

beginning balances for capital assets of $25,431,615 {(net of depreciation of

$15.880,264): the beginning net pension asset for TMRS of $633,310; the beginning

net pension lability tor TESRS of $7.503; the beginning deferred outflows of

resources related to pensions of $658.652; and the beginning deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions of $937,795 is (o increase net position.

Current vear capital outlays arc expenditures in the fund financial statements, but 355,743
they should be shown as increases in capital assets in the government-wide financial '
statements. [n addition, the proceeds from bonds issucd are considered other

financing sources in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as

increases in Jong-term debt on the gevernment-wide financial statements. The net

effect of including the current capital outlays of $3,502,743 and bond procecds of

$3.047,000 is to increasc net position.

This is the filth year of the implementation of GASB 68 for the TMRS & TESRS 197.076
pension plans. GASB 68 requires that the City report their net pension asset/liability

and the associated deferred outflows and infTows of resources in the government-

wide {Inancial statements. The changes in these items for the year included a

decrease in the TMRS net pension assct of $616,723: an increase in the TESRS net

pension liability of $8,518; an increase in deferred outflows of resources related to

pensions of $782,136: and a decrease in deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions of $40,181, "The net effect of these changes is to increase to net position.

The current year's depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. I'he net (542,786)
\ . , ‘s »
effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net position.

Various other reclassifications and eiiminations are necessary to convert from the 65,347
modified accrual basis of accounting to the accrual basis ol accounting, These

include recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminating interfund transactions.

and reclassifying fund balances to net assets. T'he net elfect of these reclassifications

and rccognitions is Lo incrcase het pesition,

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ - 11.915.470

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this stalement.

&




CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TLXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED Slil"l‘fﬂ_MBER 30,2019

General
FFund!
REVENLUIS:
Taxes:
Property Taxes b3 1,273,142

Creneral Sales & Use Taxes
FHotel/Motel Tax
Franchise Tax
Other Tuxes
Penalty & Interest on Taxes
Licenses & Permils
Interguvernmental Revenue & Girants
Charges for Services
Fines
Forfeils
tnvesiment Carnings
Rents & Rovaltics
Contributions & Donations from Private Sources
Other Revenue

Total Revenues
EXPENDITLUIRES:
Current:
General Government:
Legisiatve
Judicial
Gieneral Administration
FFimangial
Public Salety:
I'olice
Fire Prolection
Emergency Management & Scrvices
Protective Inspections
Public Works:
Highwiays & Sireels
l'oblic Services
Culnre & Recreation
[*arks
Tourism

Total Expenditores

F 09 58
161,523
3500
24077

17 BYS
SO35ED
142211
128,706

37323
40529
4,125
291,608
3799 372

24,357
167717
PICIRRR
RIS

2. 1R1.660
1,007,229
123477
133.266

U6M).383
5935
378130

9,748,173

Lxeess (Delicieney) of Revenues Over (Under) Fxpenditures

LS.H48 RO )

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LUISES):
tssuanee ol Bends
Sale of Real & Personal Mroperty
Transters In
Transters Qut
Bond Issuange Costs

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balanees
Fund Balance - October | (Bepinning)

Fund Batance - September 30 (Ending) 5

The notes 1o the financial statersents are an integral part of this statement.

9

3,047 004
3,550
4,031,058

(17 140y

C7.03.608

1L URS 807
[T

1073 198

T Tl '
Other Cravernmental
Funds Funds
8 - 3 1,273,142
- 1109 581
216,433 216,433
- 161,523
- 3,560
2941
- 17,8095
2792 366,304
3,660 147 877
4,308 F34,274
1.967 |.0467
Th fitdd [13.8927%
- 403,529
- 4,123
3.680 293 384
31656 AL
- 24,552
1,760 169477
- Y00 435
404 349
41,630 22232490
- o037 2249
- 123477
- 133.266
- Oh0, 383
39933
- 3,780,130
3.20h0 3,264
88,612 88,612
135,208 9,.883.47]
176,358 (5,772,443}
- 3,047.000
- 3550
435,591 4,466,640
(L1598 {1,159 748y
- {47.000)
1724157 6310451
(547 704 FI8.008
[, 206,670 1,284,067
LA22.075

$ 148,877 %

EXHIBIT -3

We




EXHIBIT C-4
CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental IFunds $ 538,008

Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they 455,743
should be shown as increases in capital asscts in the government-wide financial

statements. In addition, the proceeds from bonds arc considered other financing

resources in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in

fong-term debt on the government-wide financiat statements. The net effect of

removing the current year's capital outlays of $3,502,743 and bond proceeds of

$3,047,000 is to increase the change in net position.

The City is required to report pension cxpense in the government-wide financial 197,076
statements as defined by GASB 68 which is not the amount of employer contributions

as reported in the governmental fund {inancial statements. This basically entails

removing the employer contributions from expense and instead recording the current

cffects related to the net pension asset/liability and the associated deferred outflows and

inflows of resources. The net effect of these items is to increase the change in net

position.

Depreciation is not recognized as an cxpensc in governmental funds since it does not (542.786)
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's
depreciation is to decrease the change in net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert fron the (16,562)
modificd accrual basis of accounting to the accrual basis of accounting. These include

recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the

revenue earned from the current year's tax levy, and eliminating interfund transactions.

The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is (o decrease the change in net

position.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

=3

631,479

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
STATUMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2019

Business-Type Adnones

Power & Light  Water & Sower

Fund I'und
ASSETS R
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Fyuivalents 0 3.461,998 S 224130
Accounts Receivable, Net 526,980 152,634
Inventories 151,354 L8328
Total Current Assets 4,140.332  417.598
Noncurrent Assets;
Cash Restricted for Utility Deposits 985,818
Capital Assets:
Lunet Purchase & hnprovements 13.697 390,679
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 671,003 3931 u63
Investment in Water Rights, Net of Amortization - 3007503
Construction in Progress - Y
Restricied Assel: Net Pension Asset 3064 1351
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,677,582 735157

Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

‘3_8 17,914

7969160

Deferred Outllows Related to Pension Plan 198,793 170.1:46
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 198,793 1700
LIARITITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 520.182 21,594
Accrued Wages & Salarics Payable 9.832 8670
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable 16376 6,577
Customer Utility Deposits 983.818 -
Bonds Pavable - Current - KRR
Other Current Liabilities 25348 -
Total Current Liabilities 1.357.576 RV I

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bends Payable - Noncurrent
Premium on Bond Tssuance, Nel of Amaortization
Landfill Closure & Postclosure Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1.557.576

23R
3130

2.851.2:43

32130050

Deterred Inflows Relaled (o Pension Plan 124,113 {6227
Total Deterred Inflows ol Resources 17III3 106,277

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets O8O, 700 43710253
Restricted for Pension 3.064 4331
Unrestricted R R

Total Net Position

3.643.254

S 4335018 5

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.

JEIO YN



- B Fundls

o Nonmaj-ur ) Towl
Sanitation Lnterprise Enterprise
lFund Fund Funds

¥ 166,701 $ - % 3.852.835
60,248 - 739862
- - 192182
226,949 - 4784879

- . 985818

136.787 . 543.163
1,942,013 121,083 6.986.064

: - 3.007.323

- . 197.270

8.153 . 17,551
2,086,053 421.083 11.737.189
2313902 421,083 16,522,008
320,062 . 689,00}

______ o306 - 6R00DL
5,361 : 547137

16,554 . 35,276

23016 ; 45,964

. - 985.818

. : 324 871

. . 25,348

44931 T 1961414

- . 2,538,139

- - 313,104

366,677 . 366.677
366.677 - 3.217.920
411,608 | . 5.182.334
199,825 - 430,165

199 825 . 430,105
2,078,800 421,083 7,557,706
8.153 - 17,551

(64.422) . 1.023.313

5 20223531 5 121083 5 11398570

EXHIBIL D-]




CITY OFF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE.YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Lhiaseness="Type Auts i

Power & Light  Water & Sower

Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Licenses & Permits % 3299 % G264
Charges for Services 8,155.004 2,593,969
Fines 20,635 3,303
Rents and Royalties 25.668 -
Other Revenue 7837 3,226
Total Operating Revenues 8,23_2,233 2,609,707
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personne! Services - Salaries & Wages 358.074 305,863
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 223.164 182.630
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 13,176 031383
Purchased Property Services 62.927 188,500
Other Operating Costs 87,97 17.502
Supplies 4,718 815 162,761
Depreciation & Amortizalion 158,021 654.050
Total Operating Expenses C ety 2162693
Operating Income {Loss) 2.610.084 447.07-)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Earnings 85,643 2,186
Interest Expense - Nonoperating, - (101,193
Total Noneperating Revenue (Expenses) _ o BS643 (9RT07)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 2695717 348,367
Transfers Out _(2,718.025) (325961
Change in Net Position (22.208) 22,4405
Total Net Position - October 1 {Beginning) 435735160 47975350
Total Net Position - September 30 (Ending) h) 4,335,018 $ 4,819,938

I'he notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of (his statement,
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CXHIRET 32

- Eaterprise Fumds

" Notnwgjor T Towl

Sanitation Enterprise Enterprise
- Fund Fund Funds__
$ -3 - 8 12,568
1,618,329 - 12,307,392
2,489 - 26427
- - 25,6608
6,705 - 37468
1.627,523 - 12.469.523
574,864 - 1,238.805
350,219 - 756.013
48,987 - 713,548
85,083 - 367412
7,440 - 2914
176,104 - 5,057,680
390,103 197,020 1,399,194
63301197020 9615566

(6,181)  (197,020) _ 2.853.957

2 486 i 90.615
R L L L)
oo kA - (10578)
(3.695)  (197,020)  2,843.379
(262,914) - (3,306901)
(266,609)  (197,020)  (463.522)
2289140 618,103 12,062,092

$ 2022531 S 421,083 $ 11,598,570




CITY OF BROWNFIILLD, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities;

Cash Received from Customers
Cash Received from Other Sources
Cash Payments (o Employees
Cash Paviments to Supplicrs
Cash Payments for Other Operating [xpenses
MNet Cash Provided by Operating
Activitics

Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Transfers Irom (to) Other Funds - Nel
Net Cash Provided by {(Used for) Non-Capital

Financing Activities

Acquisition of Capital Assets
Payments on CRMWA Notes Including Interest
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and
Related Financing Aclivities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities;
Interest and Dividends on Investments

Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Iiquivalents at Beginning ol the Year

Cash & Cash liquivalents at the End of the Year

The noles 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

Powwer & Tighy

Fund

S R.210.744
27,537
(608,365
{1.678.157)
(164,075)

2.787.084

5{L78%
(2.718.025)

[2.607.230)

(23,513)

{23.513)

#5.043

182,578
4.205,238

% 4447816

Buniwss-Twpe Aciin e

Woiler & Sewer

Fund

£ 2604052

3220
{307.96%
(189,712
{857.38%

1526

{323.962)

(325902}

{66D.088H

21806

59,152
[ G}.681

0 2240130



EXHIBIT D-3 {Contil)

- Exuerpt e Funds
o o o N{"ﬂ"l;“:!_i.{.‘ll' o Tolal -
Samtation Lnteiprise Enterprise
lund Fund Funds
5 LelgRls S - S 12435040
6,705 - 37468
1968100} - (20845134}
{183,681 - (5.051.383}
L (142_.410) L - (I,l(ﬂ.}{?-'l_}
332,429 - 4,172,721
- - 30789
(262.914) - (3,306.901)
1262.9140 - (3.2560.112)
{2.087) - (232.883)
o L - (112.397)
{2.087) - {69528
21:9(_) - Y0613
09,914 - 311944
96.787 - 4,526,700

| &9
'

$ 166.701

$ 4838653
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CITY OF BROWNFIILD, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRILETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Reconcifiation of Operating Income {(Loss) to Net Cash
Provided Uy Operating Activities;
QOperating Income (l.oss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
To Nel Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation & Amaortization
Elfect of Increases and Decreases in Current
Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease {Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increase} in Inventories
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Pension Outflows
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Deductiens
Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilitics
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Pension Inflows
Change in Net Pension Assct/Liability
Net Cazh Provided by Qperating
Aclivities
Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents;
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Statement of Net Asscts
Restricted Cash - Statement of Net Asscls

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Busfiess-Type Aoty nics

Puwer & Light Waler & Sewer
Fund Fund

§ 2610084 3 H47.40

158,021 654,050
{19,300 12.059)
(63,844 (16
(116,383) (945100
[04.502 (26,935}
6,03/ 6.0206
25.34% .
3.9499 12.17%)
77220 71,186

¥ 2787.0681 £ LUs2608

$ 361998 5 2201560
985,818 -

v 4447816 £ 221136



- Ertenprice Daulds
MNomuajor Total
Sanitation Enterprise Enterprise

1! Fund Funds

S (6181} % (197.020) § 2833057
390,103 197,020 1,399,194
L900) (22.25¢
. - 163.89¢)
{187.856) - (398,744
(7.580) - 69,987
10,657 . 22,715
- . 25345
10,340 - 14.16]
123,851 . 272.257
5332429 0§ - % 4072721
$ 166701 § - % 3.852.833
R S8 1 £
S 166701 § - % 4838653

EXHIBIT D-3
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Apency
TF'unds
ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivulenits 5 102,720
Total Assets S 102,720
[LIABILITIES
Due to Gthers § 102,720
Total Liabilitics $ 102,720

The notes to the financial stalements are an tmegral part of this statement,
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CITY O BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial stateraents of the City of Brownfield, Texas (Cily) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amcrica (GAADP) applicable
to governmental units. ‘The Governimental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles for state and local
governments. ‘Ihe more significant cccounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed
below.

I. The Reporling Lntity
Primary Government

The City was incorporated undcr the provisions of the State of Texas in 1921, The City has a council-
manager form of government and provides services as authorized by its charter, which includes but arc not
fimited to the following: legislative, judicial, financial, highways and strects, police, fire protection,
emergency management and services, public services, parks and recreation, protective inspections, tourism,
clectric power and light, water, sewer, sanitation, and general administrative services.

The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal properties located within its
boundaries. 1t also is empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs
when decmed appropriate by the City Councit (Council). The Council is elected by the public and it has the
authority to make decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and significantly influence operations. It
also has the primary accountability for fiscal matters. Therefore, the City is a financial reporting entity as
defined by the GASB in its Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Onmibus.

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all its operations, The City evaluated whether
any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including organizations as
compotient units within the City’s reporting entity arc provided under GASB Statements Nos. 61, 39, and
t4. The City has determined that it has one component unit that is discretely presented on the government-
wide financial statements,

Compouent Unit

Brownlield [ndustrial Development Corporation (BID Corp) — The Coungcil approved the articles of
incorporation and bylaws of BID Corp, a legally separate entity from the City, in February 1990. An
additional one-half of one percent sales tax increase was approved by the City’s voters for economic and
industrial development for BID Corp. BID Corp’s declared mission is to provide for the promotion and
development of presently existing businesses and the aggressive pursuit of new businesses and industry for
the City within the constraints of Texas statutes regarding cconomic development corporations. The mission
includes working to create an environment conducive for industrial growth through qualified incentive plans
and grants, as well as promoting the City as a desired location for business and industry to move to and
develop.

BID Corp operates under House Bill 2928 and Section 4A of the Development Corporation Act, as approved
by the Texas Legislature. Bl Corp records and reports its financiat transactions under the accrual basis of
accounting. BID Corp is discretely presented because its Board of Directors is appointed by the Council
and the City can impuose its will on BI1D Corp.

. WeH



CITY OF BROWNVIELD, TIEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continucd)

3

The Reporting Entity (Continueth)

Component Unit {Continued)

BID Corp issues a separate sct of financial statements which nity be obtained by contacting:

Brownfield Industrial Development Corporation
201 W. Broadway
Brownficld, TX 79316

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Azcounting

d.

Basis of Prescntation  Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City’s basic financial starements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements (reporting the City’s General Fund and other funds). Both the government-
wide and fund financial statements categorize the primary activitics (functions) as either governmental
or business-type, The City's legislative, judicial, general administrative, financial, police, fire
protection, emergency management and services, profective mspections, highways and streets, public
services, parks and recreation, and tourism services are classified as governmental activities. The City’s
power and light, water and sewer, and sanitation services arc classificd as business-type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activitics, business-type activities,
and component unit (a) are presented by column and (b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resource
basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and deferred outflows of resources as well as all long-term
debt and deferred inflows of resources. The City’s net position is reported in three parts — net investment
in capital asscts, restricted net positon, and unrestricted net position.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the Citv's
functions (police, sanitation, etc.), as well as the general revenuces (property and other taxes, investment
income, cte.) that support them, The gross cost (expensces, including depreciation) is reduced by
program revenues, operating grants, and capital grants, all of which must be directly related to a specific
function. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital)
grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. The net costs are normally
covered by general revenues which are considered any revenues not classified as program revenues,
The City does not allocate indirect costs,

Climinations have been made nn both statements to minimize the donble-connting of internal activities,

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an cntity and the change in the
City’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities, The focus of the fund financial statements
is on the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categeries. Each presentation
provides vatuable information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the
information.



CITY OF BROWNTFIELD, TEXAS
NOTLES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summury of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.

Bagis of Presentation, [3asis of’ Accounting {Continued)

b. Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.
Cach fund is accounted for by providing a separate sct of scil-balancing accounts that comprises its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilitics, deferred inflows of resources, fund balance/net
position, revenuces, and expenditures/expenses. The various funds arc reported by generic classification
within the financial stalements.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental/business-type/fiduciary funds, with each major fund displayed in a separate column on
their set of fund-type financial statements (govermmental/proprictary/fiduciary).  All remaining
governmental/business-type/fiduciary funds are aggregated by their fund type and reported as non-major
funds in their separate fund type financials.

The following fund types are used by the City:
. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds® measurement (in the fund statements} is upon determination
of current financial position and changes in current financial position {sources, uses, and balanccs
of financial resources) rather than upon net income. Currently the County maintains its General
Fund and several special revenue funds, The City reports the General Fund as a major fund. The
General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. [t accounts for all financial resources except
thosc required to be accounted for in another [und,

The City uscs special revenue funds to account for certain resources restricted 1o, or designated for,
specific purposes by the City, state statute, other governments, or grantors and that have to be
reported in a separate fund. Some federal and state financial assistance is accounted for in special
revenue funds, and sometimes unused balances must be returned to the grantor at the close of
specified project periods. The City has seven funds designated as special revenue funds, none of
which qualify as majar,

2. Proprietary Funds;

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in
net position, financial position, and cash flows. The accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America applicable arc those similar to businesses in the private sector.
Enterprise [unds deal with extcrnal consumers while internal service funds deal with other
funds. The City currently has four proprietary funds, three of which are considered major. The
threc major funds are the Power & Light Fund, the Water & Sewer I'und, and the Sanitation fund.
Each of these funds accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with providing their
respective utility scrvices 1o residents of the City, while the Sanitation Fund also covers landlill
services as well.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting (Continued)
b. Basis of Presentation — IFund Financial Statements (Continued)
2. Proprietary Funds (Continued):

Enterprise funds arc required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or scrvices and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured
by a pledge of the nct revenues, (b} has third party requirements that the cost of providing services,
including capital costs, arc to be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fecs and charges
based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs. They can also be used when the
government body has decided that periedic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with
the principal activity of the cnterprise fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
reccives and gives up essentially equal values, Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment ecarnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating
expenses directly relate to the primary activity of the enterprise fund. Non-operating eXpenses arc
any cxpenses that do not qualify as operating cxpenses such as interest expensc on long-term debt.

3. Agency (Fidueiary) Funds:

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustec capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. These funds are custodial
in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. Formal
budgetary accounting is not required for agency funds. The City maintained three agencey funds
during the current fiscal year,

¢. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprictary Fund Financial Statements; These financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc
recorded when carned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred, regardiess of
when the related cash flows take place., Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives {or receives)
value without directly receiving (or giving) cqual value in exchange, include property faxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations, On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations arc recognized
in the fiscal ycar in which all cligibility requirements have been satisfied. If any amounts are received
before all eligibility requirements have been met, these amounts are treated as deferred revenucs by the
recipient and considered deferred inflows of resources.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting {(Continued)

o

Measurement I'ocus, Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources nieasurement foeus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in
the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end.
Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenucs
received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept.  Miscellancous
revenuces are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until
actually reccived. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and
available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims, and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions and debt
issuance costs are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds from general long-term
debt (net of any discount/premium}) and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sourees.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, all proprietary funds will continue to
follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards issucd on or before November 30,
1989, However, from that date forward, proprictary funds will have the option of either (1) choosing
not to apply future FASB standards (including amendments of carlier pronouncements) or (2) continuing
to follow new IFASB pronouncements unless they conflict with or contradicl GASB guidance. The City
has chosen to apply future FASB standards.

3. Finangial Statement Amounts

Cash and Cash Equivaicents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments purchased
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

As of September 30, 2019, the City has no investments other than interest-bearing savings and money
market accounts, ‘These investments are not subject to the fair value standards under GASB Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, because they are not measured at fair value but
instead at'cost or amortized cost.




CITY OF BROWNI'IELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIIPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

3. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)

b. Property Taxces

Property taxes are levied by October | on the assessed value listed as of the prior January | lor ail real
and business personal property in conlormity with subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due
on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before I'cbruary 1 of the year following the year
in which imposed. On January | of each year, a tax licn attaches to property to secure the payment of
all taxes, penaities, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considercd available (1)
when they become duc or past due and receivable within the current period and (2) when they are
expected to be collected within 60 days after the close of the fiscal year. The amount of taxes levied for
the City on October 1, 2018 was $1,257.871.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the Gencral Fund are based upon historical
experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically revicwed
and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory
authority from the Texas Legislature.

c. Inventories

Inventories of certain parts and supplies are recorded in both the governmental and business-type
activities and arc charged to expenditures/expenscs as consumed.

BID Corp has land holdings in the form of an industrial park. This land is being held by BID Corp as
inventory and it is reflected as such on the financial statements.

d. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The City has clected not to
retroactively report its infrastructure asscts. Infrastructure asscts acquired after the implementation of
GASB 34 will be capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend asscts” lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is
used, except Tor land which is always capitalized regardless of cost,

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over these estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure 10-30
Buildings 20-50
Building Improvements 10-20
Machinery, Equipment, and Vchicles 5-10

Disagpregation of Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

o

Fstimated uncollectible reccivables are charged to current operations under the allowance method of
accounting. The allowance for uncollectible balances at September 30, 2019, for the various accounts
inclhuded in the financial statements is as follows:
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CITY OF BROWNTICLD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.

Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)

e. Disaggregation of Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (Continued)

Estimated
Total Uncollectible Net
Receivables Accounts _ Receivabie
Governmental Activities:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 75,864 3 1,517 § 74347
Sales Taxes 08,809 - 98,809
Franchise Taxes 22,930 - 22,930
Penaltics, Fines, Service Charges 4,472 - o A4
Subtotal $ 202,075 hY 1,517 $ 200,558
Hotel-Motel Tax (Restricted) o 66,734 - 66,734
Total Governmental Activities _ % 268,809 $ 1,517 $267,292
Business-Type Activities;
Power and Light $ 543956 $ 16976 $ 526,980
Water and Sewer 161,689 a.055 152,634
Sanitation o 05,248 5,000 60,248
Total Business-Type Activities $ 770,893 $ 31,031 $ 739,862

BID Corp’s only receivables are sales taxes and they will be fully collected.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statcments of net position for both the government-wide
statemenis and the proprietary fund statements will sometimes report separate sections for deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The governmental funds balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate scction for the deferred inflows of resources. The separate financial
statement clement, deferred ouiflows of resources, represents a consumption ot 'net position that applies
te a future period(s) and so wi:l not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
ol net position that applies to a future pericd(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until then. The City has several items which qualify for reporting in these categories and they
are described below.

Governmental Funds:  The City currently has only one type of item, which arises only under the
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifics for reporting as a deferred inflow of resources. This
item, unavailable revenue from property taxes, is reported only in the governmental fund balance sheet
and it is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period when the amounts become
available. The amount of unearned revenue reported as of September 30, 2019 is $65,347.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBLR 30, 2019

Note At Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3. Financial Statenient Amounts (Continued)

f.

h.

Deferred Qutflows/InMows of Resources (Continued)

Government-wide and Proprietary Funds: The City, under GASB Statement No, 68, dccounting and
Finameial Reporting for Pensions, veports contributions 1o the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS) and Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS) after the measurement date as
deferred outflows of resources as well as cerfain pension items provided by TMRS and TESRS as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resonrces. As of September 30, 2019, the City
reported $277.964; $131,191; and $9,179 of contributions after the measurement date for governmental
activities, business-type activities, and BID Corp, respectively, for a total of $418,334. The City also
reported $1,162,824; $557,811; and $39,030 as deferred outflows of resources from pension items for
governmemtal activities, business-type activities, and BID Corp, respectively, for a total of $1,759,665,
The City also reported $897,614; $430,165; and $30,099 as deferred inflows of resources from pension
items for governmental activities, business-type activitics, and BID Corp, respectively, for a total of
$1,357.878. Liach of the three major proprietary funds was allocated a portion of the deferred outflows
and inflows of resources.

Net Position

In the government-wide financial statcinents and the proprietary fund financial statements, equity is
classificd as net position. Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows
of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The City reports three categories of net
position, as foliows:

* Netinvestment in capital assets: consists of net capital asscts reduced by outstanding balances
of any related debt otligations and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets and increased by balances of deferred outflows of
resources related to those assets.

* Restricted net position:  net position is considered restricted if s use is constrained to a
particular purpose. Restrictions are imposed by external organizations such as federal or state
laws or buyers of the City’s boads, or by law through enabling legislation.

*  Unrestricted net position: consists of all other net position that docs not meet the definition of
the above two components and is available for general use by the City,

Governmental Fond Balances

[n the governmental funds financial statements, equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is
further classificd as follows,

*  Non-spendable fund balance: includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because
it is not in spendable form (e g. inventories) or because of legal or contractual requirements {¢.g
endowments},




CITY OF BROWNFIELD. TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBLR 30, 2019
Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policics {Continued)

3. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)

h. Governmentai Fund Balances (Continued)

* Restricted fund balance: includes fund balance amounts which are constrained for specilic
purposcs which are cither (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other povernments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
cnabling legislation,

e Committed fund balance: includes fund balance amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council (highest level of
decision-making authority). These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
City Council removces or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution
or ordinance) that was cmployed when the funds were initially committed. Currently, the City
does not have any committed fund balances.

* Assigned fund balance: includes fund balance amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent can be
stipulated by the City Council. With the exception of the General Fund, this is the residual fund
balance of the classification for all governmental funds with positive fund balances.

* Unassigned fund balance: includes the residual fund balance of the General Fund that has not
been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, assigned, or
detertiined to be non-spendable. Negative residual fund balances in other governmental funds
are also classified as unassigned.

In regard to both net position and fund balance, when the City incurs an expense or expenditure for
which both restricted and unrestricted resources may he used, it is the City's general policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, I[f multipte categorics of fund balances (restricted,
committed, assigned, ctc.) apply. the most restricted funds will be used before less restricted funds.
However, the City rescrves the right to usc unrestricted net position or a lower-restricted fund balance
category depending on the intended use of or legal requirements for the resources. Management
typically makes this decision on a transactional basis when this type of expense/expenditure occurs.

i lter-fund Activity

Inter-fund activity results from loans, services provided. recimbursements or transfers between funds.
Loans are reported as inter-fund receivables and payables as appropriate and arc subject to climination
upon consolidation.  Services provided, deemed to be at markel or near imarket rates, are treated as
revenues and expendilures or cxpenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a rcimbursement.  All other inter-fund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single
“Transfers” line on the government-wide Statement of Activities, Similarly. inter-fund receivables and
payables are netted and presented as a single “Internal Balances™ line of the government-wide Statement
of Net Position,
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3. Financial Statcment Aniounts (Continued)

J-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ot assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual resulls
could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

The City providcs its employees both paid vacation and sick time. Employees with one to nine years of
service earn two weeks of vacation time a year, and employces with more than nine years of service
carmn three weeks. Unused vacation is accumulated, and an employee can carry over up to two weeks of
vacation time from the previous year. Upon separation from service, any unpaid vacation is paid to the
cmployee unless the employee has less than a year of service. The City books a liability for accrued
unpaid vacation,

Employees accrue 10 hours of sick time at the end of cach month, which can be used immediately upon
accrual.  Sick time accrues up to 480 hours and unused sick time carries over until separation from
service. However, any accurnulated hours are not paid out upon separation from service. No liability
is recorded for unpaid sick time.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related o pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net
Positions of TMRS and TESRS and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s and TESRS’s Fiduciary Net
Positions have been deterniined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS and TESRS. For this
purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employcc
or would have been reported for the volunteer firefighter, which is when contributions are legally duc.
Bencefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value,

Note B: Compliance and Accountability

1.

Finance-Related l.egal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statenrent Note Disclosures, violations of

finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, must be reported with actions taken to address such

viclations.

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City over-expended the General Fund in two functional
areas {Sce Exhibit F-1). The City will be more diligent in monitoring its actual expenditures compared
to the City’s adopted/amended budget in future years. :




CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note B: Compliance and Accountability (Continued)
2, Deficit Fund Balance or IF'und Net Position of Individual Funds

* As ol Scptember 30, 2019, the City did not have any tunds with a deficit fund balance or deficit fund
net position,

Note C: Deposits and Investments

The City’s funds arce required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The
depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City’s agent bank approved pledged securities in an
amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. ‘The pledge of
approved securities is waived only o the extent of the depository bank’s dollar amount of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

Cash Deposits

At September 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits (cash, money market accounts, and interest-
bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $6,816,836 and the bank balance was
$6,927,781. The City’s cash deposits at September 30 and during the year then ended were entirely covered by
FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City’s agent bank in the City’s name.

At September 30, 2019, BID Corp’s cash deposit balance was $1,499.002 and bank balance was $1,545,350.
The cash at September 30, 2019 and during 2019 were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or under the umbrella
of the City’s pledged collateral,

Investmenls

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act {Act), to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be writlen. And it must address the following
arcas: {1) safety of principal and liguidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable
risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7)
maximem average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8)
investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of
the audit of the basic {inancial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports
and establishment of appropriate policics, the City adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally,
investment practices of the City were in accordance with local policics.

The Act determines the Lypes of investments which are aliowable for the City. These include with certain
restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, UL.S. agencics, and the State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit,
(3) certain municipal sccurities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6} bankers
acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8} investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and {10y common trust
funds.

The City had no investments at September 30, 2019 other than money market and savings accounts included in
cash above.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBLR 30, 2019

Note C: Deposits and Investiments (Continued)

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its ebligations.
The ratings of securitics by nationally recognized agencics are designed to give an indication of credit risk,
At year end, the City was not significantly exposed 1o credit risk.

b. Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits
arc uncollateralized, collateralized with securitics held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized

with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the City's
name.

[nvestment securitics are exposcd to custodial credit risk if the securities arc uninsured, are not registered in
the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department
or agent but not in the City's name.

At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk,

Concentration of Credit Risk

«©

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issucr. At
year end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair vatue of an investment. At year
cnd, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

¢. Forcign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
City was not exposcd to forcign currency risk,

o WeH




CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note D: Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the period ended Scptember 30, 2019, was as follows:

Governmental Activities: Balancc Balance
10-01-18 Additions Deletions 9-30-19 )
Land $§ 627913 § - - § 627913
Construetion in Progress - Fire Dept, 1,979,264 170,262 - 2,149,526
Construction it Progress - Downtown - 49,606 - 49,6046
Construction in Progress — Ballparks - 3,097.466 - 3,097 466
Infrastructure 2,505,733 - - 2,505,733
Buildings & Improvements 8,284,372 0,645 - 8,294,017
Furniture & Equipment 12,034,334 175,764 (44,170) 12,165,928
Total Capital Assets $25431,616 _ § 3502743 $  (44,170) $ 28,890,189
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Infrastructure § 2,154,658 S 28,397 % - $ 2.183.055
Buiidings & Improvements 2,415,420 288,404 - 2,703,824
Furniture & Equipment 11,310,187 225,985 . (44,170) 11,492,002
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 15,880,265 § 542,786 $  (44,170) $ 10,378,881

Net Capital Assets __$ 9,551,351

§ 2959057 8

§ 12,511,308

Depreciation was charged to functions of the Governmental Activities as follows:

General Administration

Police

Fire Protection

Emergency Management & Services
Protective Inspecrions

Highways & Strects

Parks and Recreation

Total Depreciation Expense

32

$

LT iy S,

8.418
207916
54,149
4,104
1,389
77,394
189416

$_ 542,786
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Note D: Capital Asscts (Continued)

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the period ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

Balance Deletions/ Balance
Business-Type Activities: 10-01-18 Additions Transfers 9-30-19

Land b 543,163 § - $ - b 543,163

Construction in Progress — BPS #4 - 197,270 - 197,270

Buildings & Improvements 4,044,409 - - 4,044,409

Equipment 8,252,638 55,614 - 8,308,252

Electric Infrastructure 1,512,507 - - 1,512,507

Water Infrastructure 2,440,094 - - 2,440,094

Sewer Infrastructure 4,925,045 - - 4,925,045
Assets Being Amortized:

Water Rights 5,863,570 - - 5,863,570

Total Capital Assets $ 27,581,426 % 252,884 % - $ 27.834310
Less Accumulated Depreciation;
Buildings & Improvements § 3,842,188 % 147,070 § - $ 3,989.258
Equipment 4,484 382 573,447 - 5,057,829
Electric Infrastructure 895,818 104,502 - 1,000,320
Water Infrastructure 1,089,775 79,002 - [,168,777
Sewer Infrastructure 2910614 117,445 - 3,028,059
Accumulated Amortization

Water Rights 2,496,088 360,159 - 2,856,247
‘Fotal Accumulated

Depreciation/Amortization $ 15718865 § 1,381,625 % - $ 17,100,490
Assets and Water Rights, Net of

Depreciation/Amortization $ 11,862,561 $(1,128,741) § - $ 10,733,820

Depreciation and amortization was charged to Business-Type Activities as follows:

Depreciation - Power & Light $ 158,024
Depreciation — Water & Sewer 293,892
Depreciation -- Sanitation 372,534
Depreciation — CRTC/ISY Facilities 197,020
Total Depreciation Expense § 1,021,467
Amortization - Water & Scwer $ 360,158
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense _§ 1,381,625
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CITY OF BROWNIIELD., TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note E: Long-Term Dcbt

1. Governmental Activitics

On February 5, 2019, the City issued Series 2019 Sports Complex Bonds for proceeds of $3,047,000
(including the bond issuance costs of $47,000) which are to be used, in conjunction with a portion of the
City’s Hotel-Motcl Tax Fund reserves, 10 completely renovate and rebuild the City’s baseball complex.
Principal payments are 1o be made every February 15 starting in 2020 (with a payment of $158,000) and
going through 2034 and interest at 3.4% is paid twice a year on February 15 and August |5, The first interest
payment of $54,677 was paid August 15, 2019. The City also accrued interest of $12.950 toward the next
interest payment. The bond is to be paid from the general revenues of the City.

Debt service requirements of governmental fund long-term debt outstanding at September 30, 2019, arc as

follows:
Principal Merest Total

Year Ending September 30,

2020 $ 158000 $ 100912 § 258,912
2021 164.000 95,438 259,438
2022 170,000 89,760 259,760
2023 175,000 83,895 258,895
2024 182,000 77.826 259.826
2025-2029 1,006,000 290.462 1,290,462
2030-2034 1,192,000 104,040 1,296,040
Tolals $ 3047000 § 842333 § 3,889,333

[

Business-Type Activities

CRMWA Investment in Water Facilities: The City, along with several West Texas Mmunicipalities, entercd
into various contracts with the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority (CRMWA), to participate in the
construction and maintenance of water gathering, holding, treatment, and transmission fucilitics. Under the
agreements, CRMWA agreed to issue revenue bonds to [inance construction and maintenance of the
lacilitics and the City agreed to pay back their share of the total annual debt service requirements,

CRMWA is a water district that was created in 1953 by the Texas Legislature to construct a dam, water
reservoir, and aqueduct system for the purpose of supplying water to surrounding cities. Its geographic arca
includes the surface water in the Texas Panhandic known as L.ake Meredith, a serics of underground wells,
and the aqueduct system, which supplies 11 cities.

‘The T cities that are members of the aqueduct system have the right to elect the 19 members of the CRMW A
governing board. The City’s contractual share of the available water is approximately 2.37%. Each member
may sell part or all of its rights under the contract to other members of the aqueduct system. Each member
city is assessed its proportionate share of operating costs, which are accounted for by the City as operating
Ccosts,

Transactions between CRMWA and the City consisted of payments to CRMWA for the Cily's share of costs

of operations, water pumping and chemical costs, and debt service as follows for the year ended Scptember
30, 2019:
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Note E: Long-Term Debt (Continucd)

1. Business-Type Activities (Continued)

Costs of Operations § 446,178
Watet Pumping and Chemical Costs 194,340
Debt Service o 442397
Total § 1,082,915

[ —_—

Although member cities have the right to clect the members of the CRMWA board, the City does not report
this contract as a joint venture due to the following factors: (1) CRMWA was created by the State of Texas
and s a subdivision thereof, as apposed to having been created by the members of CRMWA; (2) the City
has no vested rights to the asscts of CRMWA, nor responsibility for its labilities, other than the City’s
proportionate sharce of the contractual construction obligations.

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2019 arc as fotlows and details of each
bond follow below (he changes:

Beginning Ending Due Within
CRMWA Contracted Debt __ Balance Increases  Decrcases  Balance One Year
Series 1999-2010 Retunding § 39,797 % - $ 19230 § 203507 % 20.567
Series 2011 1.343.637 - 83.251 1.260.386 86.830
Series 2005-2012 Relunding 873.785 - 28.751 843,034 110,292
Scrivs 2005-2014 Refunding 117,598 - 87.845 29.753 29733
Series 2006-2014 Refunding 527,813 - 52,679 475,134 53.279
Series 2009-2017 Refunding 253,704 - 21508 232,136 22,144
Premium on Bond Issuance - 363.899 - 30.795 313104 -
Tatal _$ 33520233 s - S 319 8§ 3176014 S 324871
Amount Ititerest
Qutstanding bxpense
_CRMWA Centracted Debt — Descriptions Interest Raie Maturity 9-30-19 __9-30-19
Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 1999, Partial Ret 2010 %10 3.5% 2-15-20 5 200567 % (1460
Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 10%to 5.0% 2-15-3) 1,260,386 63.523
Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, Refunded 2005 4,50% 2-15-25 845.034 43,688
Contract Revenue Bonds. Series 2014, Refunded 2005 2.0% 10 5.0% 2-15-20 29,753 5.880
Contract Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, Refunded 2006 2.0% 0 5.0% 2-15-27 475134 26391
Contract Revenue Bonds, Serics 2009, Refunded 2017 3.0% t03.0% 2-15-29 232136 10015
Total $ 2863010 $ 149,353

Debt service requirements of long-term CRMWA debt outstanding at Seplember 30, 2019, are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

Year Linding September 30,

2020 $ 324871 S 136805 $ 461,676
2021 327,962 122,243 450,205
2022 344,032 106,234 450,266
2023 361,157 89,305 450,462
2024 379,570 71308 450.878
2025-2029 951,328 153,740 1,105,068
2030-2034 174,090 9,354 183,444
Totals $ 2863010 § 688,989 $ 3,551,999
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMLENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note I': Landfiil Obligation

The City currently operates one active landfill site. State and federal laws and regulations require th.e City to
place a final cover on its operating land{ill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years afier closure. Although closure and post-closure care costs
will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these
closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of
each Statement of Net Position date. The $366,677 reported as landfill closure and post-closure carc liability as
of September 30, 2019 represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 12.05% ol the
estimated capacity of the landfill. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post-
closure care of $2,677.060 as the remaining capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost
to perform all closure and post closurc-care in 2019. Based on current demographic information and engineering
estimates of landfill consumption, the City expects to close the landfill in approximately 2065. Actual costs may
be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The City is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to finance
closure and post-closure care costs. The City has not placed funds in a trust to cover these costs but is in
compliance with financial assurance procedures as required by the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality,

Note G: TMRS-Pension Plan
Plan Description

The City of Brownfield participatcs as onc ol 887 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency
created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act. Subtitle G, Title 8 Texas
Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-em ployer retirement and disability pension system for
municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management
of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit
pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a
publicaily available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at wiwie fimrs. com.

All eligiblc employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retivement, disability, and death benefits.  Benefit and plan provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is caleulated as il the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and the City-
linanced monetary credits with interest were used to purchasc an annuity. Members may choose to receive their
retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also choose 1o receive a portion of their
benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot
exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TLIXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBIR 30, 2019

Note G: TMRS-Pension Plan (Continued)
Benefits Provided (Continued)

Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Yvar 2018 Plan Year 2019
Employece Deposit Rate 3.0% 5.0%
Matching Ratio (City to Imployec) 2ol 2wt
Years Required lor Vesting 1} 16
Service Retiretnent Eligibility {Expressed as Age/Years of Service) 607D, (20 0010, (124}
Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating Transtors 100% Repeating Transters
Annuity Increase (10 Retinees) 50% of CPI Repeating 50% of CPI Repeating
Supplemental Death Benefit Plan - Active EmployeesiRetirees No/No Nao/No

Employees covered by benefit terms

Atthe December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employces were covered by the benefit
terms:

Inactive Lmployees or Beneficiaries Currenily Receiving Benelits
Inactive limployees Entitted to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits
Active Employees

Total

_
Erews

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6% or 7% of empioyee gross earnings, and the
city matching percentages are either 160%, 150% or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the city.
Under state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for cach city is determined annually by the actuary,
using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actvarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount
to finance any unfunded accrued Liability.

Lmployees for the City of Brown(icld were required to contribute 5% of their annual gross earnings during the
liscal year. The actuarially determined contribution rates for the City of Brownficld were 6.04% and 5.11% in
calendar years 2018 and 2019, respectively. However, the City clected to use a contribution rate of 15.35% for
both years. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended Scptember 30, 2019 were $589,716 and
exceeded the required contributions.

Net Pension 1,iability/Asset

‘The City’s Net Pension Liability/Asset (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the Total Pension
Liability (TPL) vsed to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuariol assumprions

The TPL in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was calculated using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Overall Payroll Growth 3.0% per year
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, imcluding inflaticn
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBIER 30, 2019
Note G: TMRS-Pension Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability/Asset (Continucd)

Actuarial assumptions (Contined)

Salary increases were based on a service-related tabie. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
benceficiarics were based on the Gender-distinet RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tablcs with Blue Collar
Adjustment, with male rates multiplicd by 109% and female rates multiplicd by 103%. Based on the size of the
city, rates are multiplied by an additional factor of 100%. The rates are projected on a fully gencrational basis
by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the Gender-distinct RP2000
Combined 1lealthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition. a 3%
minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled, The
ratcs are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject
to the 3% floor.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were developed primarily from the actuarial
mvestigation of the experience of TMRS over the four-ycar period from December 31, 2010 to December 3 {,
2014, They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-
retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the
Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013, In
conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, TMRS adopted the Entry Age
Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change (o the amortization policy. Assumptions are reviewed
annually and as a resuli there were no assumption changes during the year.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%. The pension plan’s policy in regard
lo the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees. Plan
assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production
of income. in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expeeted rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using 4 building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for cach major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining their best estimale of a
recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS
focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and
(2) the peometric mean {conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and best
estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table;

Asset Class Tarpet Allogation Lung-Term Uxpeeted Real Rate of Return {Arithmetic)
Domestic Lguity 17.5% 1.55%
International Equity 17.5% 6.35%
Core I'ixed Tncome 10.0% 1.00%
Nan-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 3.90%
Reat Return 10.0% 3.80%
Real Lstate 10.0% 4.15%
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.753%
Private Lquity e 30% 7.50%
Total 100,084

s g
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CITY O BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 390, 2019
Note G: TMRS-Pension Plan (Continued)

Net Pension Liability/Assct (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed (hat the funding policy adopted by the TMRS Board will remain in effect for all future
years. Based on that assumiption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position and future contributions were
projected to be sufficient to finance the future benefit payments of current plan members for all projection years.

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applicd to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the TPI..

Change in Net Pension Liability/(dsset)

Total Pension Plan Net
Liability Fiduciary Pension
Net Position Liability/{ Assct)
. fa (b) (a)-by
Balance at 12/31/17 $18,381.329 § 19348304 $ (966,975)
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 393.502 - 393,502
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 1,224.582 - 1,224,582
Change of Benefit Terms - - -
Difference Between Expected and Actual
Experience (325,160) - (325.160)
Changes of Assumptions - - -
Contributions — Cinployer - 582,448 (582,448)
Contributions — I'm ployee - 189,731 {189.73 1"
Net Investment Income - (579,077 379.077
Benefit Payments, [nciuding Refunds of
Employee Contributions (872,250) (872,256) -
Administrative Expense - (11,201 11,201
Other Changes e (585) 585
Net Changes _ % 220668 $ (690,940) § 911,608
Balance at 12/31/18 _ $1i8601,997 § 18,657,364 8 (55.367)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liabilin/4sset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net position liability/(asset) of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%,
as well as what the City"s net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were caleulated using a discount rate that is
I-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or I-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
e (B8.75%) (6.75%) (775%)
City’s Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 2,322,878 h (55.367) 3 (2,023,019
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CITY OF BROWNI'[ELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note G: TMRS-Pension Plan (Continued)

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a scparately issued TMRS
financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at vvw fmirs. con.

Pension Lxpense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 1o Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $265,320.

Al September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the foliowiny sources:

Deterred Outflows Deferred Inflosws
of Resources ___ of Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Economic Experience 5 - b 430,358
Changes in Actuarial Assumplions 26,104 -
Differences Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 1.733.437 726,588
Contributions Subscquent to the Measurement Date 413,834 -
Total $ 2,173,439 3 1,356,946

e ma — -

$413.838 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent
10 the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension tiability for the year ending
September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension cxpense as follows:

Net Deferred

Outflows
['iscal Year Ended {Inflows) of
September 30  Resources
2020 $ 149,067
2021 (66.807)
2022 (353)
2023 320,748
2024 -
Thereafier — L
Total $ 402,655
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTLES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note 1I: TESRS-Pension Plan for Volunteer Firefighters

The City provides volunteer firefighters with pension coverage through the Texas Emergency Scrvices
Retirement System (TESRS).

Plan Description

TESRS administers a cost-sharing multiple employer pension sysiem established and administered by the State
of Texas to provide pension benefits for emergency services personnel who serve without significant monctary
remuncration. TESRS is governed by a nine member board of trustces, with at least five of the trustees being
active members of the pension system. TESRS issues a stand-alone {inancial report that is available to the public
atwirw fesrs.org. TESRS operates on a fiscal year ending Augost 31 with the fiscal year ending August 31,
2018 being the latest available financial data. At Avugust31, 2018, there were 238 fire and/or emergency services
member departments participating in TESRS. Eligible participants inciude volunteer emergency services
personnel who are members in good standing of a member department, On August 31,2018, the pension system
membership consisted of?

City of
TESRS Brownfield
Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benelits 3.533 5
l'erminated Members Entitled to Benefits but Not Yet Receiving Them 1,927 -
Active Participants {Vested and Non-vested) 3,927 a7
Total 9,187 12

Benelits Provided
Senate Bill 411, 65" Legislature, Regular Session (1977), created TSRS and established the applicable bencfit
provisions. The 79" Legislature, Regular Session (2005), re-codified the provisions and gave the TESRS Board
of Trustees authority to establish vesting requirements, contribution levels, benefit formulas, and chgibility
requirements by board rule. The benelit provisions include retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Members are 50% vested alier the tenth year of service, with the vesting percent increasing 10% for
each of the next five years of service so that a member becomes 100% vested with fifteen years of service.

Upon reaching age 55, each vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his vested percent
multiplicd by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over the member’s years of qualified
service. For years of service in excess of fiftecn years, this monthly benefit is increased at the rate of 6.2%
compounded annually. There is no provision for automatic postretirenient benefit increases.

On and ofl-duty death benefits and on-duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the member was
engaged in the performance of dutics at the time of death or disability. Death benefits include a lump sum
amount or continuing monthly payments to a member’s surviving spouse and dependent children.

Funding Policy

Contributions are made by the City for their volunteer fircfighters, the City’s only emergency services personnc]
who are ¢ligible for TESRS. Ne contributions are required from the individuals who are members of TESRS,
nor are they allowed. The City is required te make contributions for cach month a member performs cmergency
services (this minimum contribution is $36 per member and the City may make a higher monthly contribution
for its volunteers). This is referred to as a Part One contribution, which is the legacy portion of the TESRS
contribution that directly impacts future retiree annuities,
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Note ii: TESRS-Pension Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (Continued)

Funding Policy (Continued)

The State of Texas is required to contribute an amount necessary to make TESRS “actuarially sound” each year,
which may not exceed one-third of the total of all contributions made by participating governing bodies in a
particular year.

The board rule defining contributions was amended in 2014 to add the potential for actuarially determined Part
Two contributions that would be required ouly if the expected future annual contributions from the State of
Texas are not enough with the Part One contributions to provide an adcquate contribution arrangement as
determined by the most recent actuarial valuation, This Part Two portion, which is actuarially determined as a
percent of the Part One portion {not to exceed 15%), is to be actuarially adjusted every two years (even-
numbered) based on the most recent actuarial valuation, Based on the actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2016,
the Part Two contributions were established by the Board of Trustees to be 2% of the Part One contributions
beginning September 1, 2017, Based on the August 31, 2018 actuarial valuation, the Part Two contributions arc
not required for an adequate contribution arrangement.

Additional contributions may be made by governing bedies within two years of joining TESRS, to grant up to
ten years of credit for service per member. Prior service purchased must have occurred before the department
began participation in TESRS,

A small subsct of participating departments has a different contribution arrangement which is being phased oul
over time. In this arrangement, contributions made in addition to the monthly contributions for active members,
are made by local governing bodies on a pay-as-you-go basis Tor members who were pensioners when their
respective departments merged into TESRS. There is no actuarial impacl associated with this arrangement as
the pay-as-you-go contributions made by these governing bodies are always equal to the benefit payments paid
by TESRS.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not actvarially
determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions arc set by board rule, and therc is no maximum
contribution rate, For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2018, total contributions of $4,098,835 were paid into
TESRS by the political subdivisions served by the member volunteer emergency services personnel, The State
of Texas appropriated $1,329,224 for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2018, The City contributed $3,171 to
TESRS during its fiscal ycar ending September 30, 2019,

The purpose of the biennial actuarial valuation is (o determine if the contribution arrangement is adcquate to pay
the benefits that are promised. Actuarial assumptions arc disclosed below. The most recently completed biennial
actuarial valuation as of August 3, 2018 stated that TESRS has an adequate contribution arrangement for the
benefit provisions recognized in the valuation based on the expected total contributions, including the expected
contributions both from the governing body of each participating department and from the State of Texas.

The expected contributions from the State of Texas are state appropriations equal to (1) the maximum annual
contribution {one-third ol all contributions to TESRS by governing bodies of participating departments in a year)
as needed in accordance with state law governing TESRS and (2) approximately $725,000 each year to pay for
part of the TESRS’s administrative expenses.



CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 36, 2019

Note 11: TESRS-Pension Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (Continucd)

Net Peasion Liability

The System’s nel pension liability (NPL) was measured as of August 31, 2018, and the total pension liability
(TPL) used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2018.

City of
TESRS Brownfield
Total Pension Liability $ 137,514,345 3 101,761
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 115,863,894 85.739
Net Pension Liability $ 21650451 % o teu2l
Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 84.26% 84.26%

Actuarial Assumptions

The TPL in the August 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applicd to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary Tncreases N/A
Investment Rate of Return 7.75% net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

TESRS used the entry age actuarial cost method for the August 31, 2018 actoarial valuation. The amortization
method was the level dollar, open method and the amortization period was 30 years. The asset valuation method
used was market value smoothed by a S-year deferred recognition metiod with an 80%/1 20% corridor on market
value. Therc were no cost of living adjustments,

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Lives Mortality Tables for males and for females
projectud to 2024 by scale AA,

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which expected future net real rates of return {expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These components are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage (currently 5.01%) and by adding expected inflation (3.00%). In addition, the final 7.75%
assumption was selected by “rounding down™ and thereby reflects a reduction of 0.26% for adverse deviation.
The target allocation and expected arithmetic real rates of return for cach major asset class arc summarized in
the following table:



CITY OF BROWNFIELD. TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Note 1I: TESRS-Pension Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation  Net Real Rate of Return
Equities
Large Cap Domestic 32% 5.81%
Small Cap Domestic 15 592
Developed International 15 6.21
Limerging Markets 5 1.18
Master Limited Partnership 5 7.0]
Real Bstate 5 4.46
Fixed Income 23 1.61
Cash 0 0.00
Total __lo0%
Weighted Average 5.01%

Discownt Rue

The discount rate used 1o measure the TPL was 7.75%. No projection of cash flows was used to determine the
discount rate because the August 31, 2018 actuarial valuation showed that expected contributions would pay the
normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial acerued liability (UAAL) in 30 years using the conservative
level dollar amortization miethod. Becausc of the 30-year amottization period with the conservative amortization
method, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is expected to be available to make atl projected future bencefit
payments of current active and inactive members. Thercfore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applicd 10 all periods of projccted benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The fellowing presents the NPL of TESRS and of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well

as what TESRS’s NPL. and the City"s NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower (6.75%) or | percentage point higher (8.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 19% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate [Jiscount Rate
_(675%)  (1.75%) (8.75%)
TESRS’s Net Pension Liability b 43,023,103 § 21,650451 ¥ 7,233,195
City’s Net Pension Liability $ 31,837 % 16,021 § 5,353
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBLER 30, 2019
Note H: TESRS-Pension Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (Continued)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)

At August 31, 2018, the City reported a liability of $16,021 for its proportionate share of TESRS’s NPL. The
amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the NPL, the related State support, and the total
portion of the NPL that was associated with the City were as [ollows:

Clty’s Proportionate Share of the Collective NPL $ 16,021
State’s Proportienate Share (hat is Associaled with the City* 6,121
Total $ 22,142

*Calowlated using the City's proportionaie share of contributions fexciuding State contributions from the ratia) multiplied by the State '
share of the collective NP1

The TPL used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2018, GASB
Statement No. 68 requires the NPL to be measured as of a date no earlier than the end of the employer’s prior
fiscal year. TESRS did not roll forward (nor did they provide the necessary information for the participants to
roll forward) the NPL to be measured as of a date no earlier than the end of the City’s prior fiscal year.

While the City acknowledges that the measurement date does not fall within this twelve-month period, the City
clected to honor the conservatism principle and report the NPL measured s of August 31, 2018. The City uscd
the assumption that any differences in the NPL measured as of August 31, 2018 versus September 306, 2018
would be immaterial. The City’s proportionate share of the NPL was based on the City’s contributions to TESRS
relative to the contributions of all employers to TESRS for the period September 1, 2017 through August 31,
2018.

At August 31, 2018 the City’s proportionate percentage of the collective NPL was 0,074%, which was greatcr
than its proportionate percentage of 0.03 1% measured as of August 31, 2017,

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that alfected measurement of the TPL during the
measurement period.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the TPL during the measurement period.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued Annual
Financial Report that includes [inancial statements, notes, and required supplementary information. TESRS
makes this report publicly available at www.iesrs, org, The separately issued actuarial valuations that may be ol
interest are also availabie at the same link,
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Note H: TESRS-Pension Plan for Volunteer Firefighters (Continuved)

Pension Expensc and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Eor the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of $5,079.

At September 30, 2019, the City reported its proportionate share of TESRS’s deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outllows Deferred Intlows
ol Resources of Resources
Differences Between Expecied and Actual Economic Experience % 4 % 46
Chanpes in Actuarial Assumptions 60 -
Bifferences Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings - 886
Contributions Subsequent (o the Measurement Date _ 4196 - )
Total 8 4560 8 932

$4,496 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending September

30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Nel Deterred

Fiscal Year Cnded Quiilows {inflows}
Seplember 30 of Resources

2020 $ 1,032

2021 {375)

2022 (845)

2023 {18

2024 -

Therealter -

Total g (868)

Note ;' Inter-fund Transfers

Transfers between funds during 2019 were as follows:

I'rom From [Fram IFrom From
Hotel/Motel  Power & Liglt  Water & Sewer  Sanitation Inlrastructure Total
o Tax Fund Fund IFund Fund __PPund )
To General Fund 3 724836 $ 2609297 % 16,513  § 145500 % 434912 $ 4.031.058
To Infrastructure lund -« . 108,728 209,449 17444 - 435.591
Total 5 72483 $ 27(8025 % 325962 § 262014  § 434912 & 4,466,649
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note J: Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies:

The City participates in grant programs which arc governed by various regulations and rules of the grantor
agencies, Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustiment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants,
refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be impaired.
In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to the compiiance with the rules
and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying
basic financial statements for such contingencies.

Litigation and Claims:

The City is subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of business. It is the
opinion of management and the Council that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and lawsuits
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the City. As of September 30, 2019, the City
has no pending litigation,

Note K: Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City obtains general liability coverage at a cost that
is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State of
Texas as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded
pool operating as a common risk management and insurance program, The City pays an annual premium to
TML for the aforementioned insurance coverage.

The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each
category of coverage hus its own level of reinsurance. The City also carries commercial insurance for other risks
of loss such as employee health. There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the
past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.

Note L: Subsequcat Kvents

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 9, 2020, which is the date the financial stalements
were available to be issued.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TI;XAS
SCHEDULFE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Actual
Amounis
Budgeted Amounts
Oniginal Final

REVENLIES:

Taxes:
Property Taxes § 1,250,723 1,250,723 § 1,273.142
General Sales & Use Taxes 070,146 970,146 1,109,581
Franchise Tax 178,376 178,376 161,523
Other Taxes 1,976 1,976 3.590
Penalty & Interest on Taxes 16,292 16,292 24477
Licenses & Permits 16,970 16,970 17,895
Intergovernmental Revenue & Grants 350,000 §50.000 363512
Charpes for Services £35,707 135,707 142211
Fines | 1,600 111,600 129,766
[uvestment Earnings 1O 1010 37323
Rents & Rovallies 47,682 17.682 40,529
Contributions & Donatiens from Private Sources 1,950 1,930 4,125
Other Revenue 251,635 251,635 201,698
Total Revenues 3537276 35337276 37049372

LEXPENDITURES:

Current:
Legislative 3337 13371 24,352
Judiciat 194,832 199 832 FOT 71T
General Adminisiration 895997 RUs By7 Q0635
Financiai RSN R 434150 409,391
Police 217,139 2217139 2181660
Fire Protection 1,150 293 1,036 203 1.007.229
Emergency Management & Services 138352 138,552 123,477
Profective Inspuections 125,939 123,939 133,266
Highwiys & Streets UT5 658 ORR b3R Oni 383
Public Services 88.814 ¥8.814 30433
Culture & Recreation 674,744 3784744 3,780,130
Tolal Fxpenditures 0,843 408 9.966,498 G.748173

Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues Owver {(Under)
txpenditures
CTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of Bonds

{13.306.222)

{6.420,222)

23600000

{3,948 801

3,047 1000

Sale of Real & Personal Property - - 1,550
Transivrs In 3,306,222 3,956,222 4,031,058
Bond Issuance Costs - - {47,600
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ©3.306.222 6416222 7,034.608

Net Change in Fund Balances - {13.000) 1,085 8G7

Fund Balance - October | (Beginning) 112,609} (11.609) (12,6019
Fund Balance - Seplember 30 (Ending) ¥ {12,609} (256005 % [.073.198

48

EXHIBIT )-]

Variance With
Final Budget
I"ositive or
[Negative}

$ 2219
1349134
1T05%

1614

BI85

Y25

13512

01,450

15,157

36313
{7153}

2178
0063
262,090

p)
32018
ERETS
24.768
35.479
32064
15,073
(7,327
28375
2888
A.6141
218,375

$30.21

387 G
3350
T.830
{(47.00th
018,386

1098 847

3 1 098 807
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Total Pension Linbitity

Servive Cost

Inteaest ron the 'mal Peasion Liability]

Chingres of Benedir Terms

[iTerenee Between Txpecied amd Actual Lixperience

Chanpe of Assumptions

Benelit Pavments, Including Refunds ol Employee Cominibutions
Nel Change in Teial Pension Liaibliry

Tatal Peosion Linbility - Beginning

Total Pension Linbility - Encling (a)

Plau Fiduciary Net Position

Coatnibutions - Employer

Contributions - Employee

Net Insestment Ingome

Beneit Payments, Inchuding Refunds of Emplovee Coninbutions
Admimstrative Expense

Qther

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Posiliun

Pran Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (h)

Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Ending (ap-(Iny

Flan Fiduciary Net Position ns » Perceninge of
Totul Pension Liakility

Covered Employee Payrell
Net Pension Liability (Asse1) ax a Pereentage of

CUwvered Pavieoll

*Only five years of mformation s currenth avlable The City well

CITy O
SCHEBDULL OF CHANGUS IN NET PENSION LIABILITY/ASSET

BROWNEIELD, TEXAS

].'_I“.

ANDGIRE] ATED RATION - ThiRse>
furrnuneftiaedy
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31 December 34,
e s il e 08
b3 312583 5 30818 § 395 23R4 ¥ av6.257 s 393,502
1138 565 1 172,503 1,168,532 1182912 |22 582
(526,067) (197,395 [EEERT KN t113.9949 (525 [tdhy
. 206,604 - - -
L tTFA3Eu| (R 520 il i86 H19) (B0 68T (R72.256)
) P91,845 S T 006 ) 32,944 5 64d ARR 5 10668
_. 6786040 _ l6w7780] | 7,703 897 17,736,841 18.381.329
_S 16977 891 % 17703 897 S 17736841 S 1838132y § 18601507
S 534,278 % SA5052 b3 581,630 b} 558,567 % ART A48
172,635 IR0.834 1ha | 34 [&].%13 Th4 73
B93 03t 2263 1,106,172 2,362 136 |STRUTY;
(732 891 {806,524 (L Ra 119 (RO BRE) 1872236
(9324 [14,780) {12.504) 12253 1A
_ (167 17304 (o) tH2 1y [IREY
5 8324952 L) 161,923 S KT 5 2239tk s LI
A1 KO 16,4 406 16,382 484 17059120 19,348,304
516,444 406 8 16,382 484 s 1708120 519348 304 § 18657304
§ 533 485 5 1AM § 077,721 S {966,975 5 (553RT)
U6 B 92540, 9f 1R 105 6%, [0y 30,
B 3AS0T S 36l6.680 5 3720019 % 3638Es2 S 3794620

15.45%, i 54%

Build thes seledule over the next five-sear penad
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CIVY QF BROWNELELD, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABLILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS - TESRSY

frmcncdiredy
August 1, Allpust 31, August 31, August 3§, Angust 31,
2014 2015 2016 2017 J01H
Ciry's Froportian of the Net Pension Liability 0105y L1309 0023w 0.031%; [EREFE LN
City's Propuetivnute Shure of the Ner Pension Llabillry § 19,067 § 1.934 b 6,409 M 7,503 $ 16,021
State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Linlsiliry 9712 4,200 338 3653 a1
Total S am9 5 i3 5 9795 5 1ase % 22147
Nuinbier of Active Membern=* 11 3 3 3 8
Lily's Net Pension Liability Ier Active Member S 1,733 $ 2.045 ) 3305 13 2.501 S 2003
Flan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentape
uf the Tatal Fension Liubility 83 aomg 76 89 76,34% Bl41% B 20,

*only five vears of mformation is currently available, The Caty will bunld ths schedule over the nexl fise-vear periad

**There is no compensation for active niembers Number of aziive members s used instead
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CITY OF BROWNFILLD, TEXAS
SUHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - TMVRS*
functelited}

FYE Iyl YL Fyk I'YE
93020135 93072016 94302017 9/30/2008 9:30h2019

Actianially Determined Contribution 5 348982 § 298578 278762 § 242128 S 2064972
Cumtributions in Relation 1o the Acwarially Determined Contribution 6,050 0 55875 560,231 572,030 380716
Contribution Dehiciency {Fxcess) $ (97968 § (260173 _,$ (280465 § (329905  § (382744
Covered Cinployee Payroll $ 3.563.192 S 3.600,074 $ 3649712 § 3,726,583 $ 384,797
Contribution as a Percentage of Covered Lmployee Payrall 15 35% 15.35% 13.35% 15.35% 15.35%

SCHEDULL OF CONTRIBUTIONS - TISRS*

forsteineeltiond)

FYI: FYE EYE FYE EY I
9302015 94302016 9302017 9300018 913072619

Actuarially Determined Contrthution 5 LA 8 10608 % 1512 $ 35§ T
Contributions in Relation o the Actuarially Determined Contribuytion R IiC | 008 1,512 3,525 3.17]
Contobution Deficiency (Fxeess) 3 -5 - 3 - 5 -5 -
Numbier of Active Members** 3 2 t b 7
Contributions per Active Member 3 68 $ 304 S 504 b 4] $ 453

*Only fve years of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the next {ive-veur period,

*+There is no eompeasation for active members, Number of active members is used instead.



CITY OF BROWNTFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note A: Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the general, infrastructure, hotel-motel tax, power and light, water
and sewer, sanitation, and detention facility funds. The Genera! Fund budget is legaily adopted, The annual
budgets for all funds arc prepared on the cash basis. ‘I'here were no material differences between modified
accrual and cash amounts tn the General Fund, so no reconciliation is necessary.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the required supplementary
information:

1. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City prepares a budget for the succeeding fiscal year. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of linancing them.

2. A meeting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. At lcast ten days
public notice of the meeting must have been given.

3. Priortothe starf of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through a passage of resolution by the City Council.

4. Once a budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of the City Council.
The legal leve! of control is the function level.

3. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official minutes of (he City
Council, and are not made after fiscal year end.

6. During the year, the City Council made cight amendments to the budget.
7. All budget appropriations lapse at year end,
Note B: Net Pension Liability ~ Texas Municipal Retirement System
Valuation Date:

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are caleulated as of December 31 and become
effective in Jahuary, 13 months later.

Actuarfal Cost Methad Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 25 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 year smoothed market; 15% soft cortidor

Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.5% 1o 10.5% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.73%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City’s plan of benefits. Last
updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-2014

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with malc rates

multipiicd by 109% and female rates mulliplied by 103% and projected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB

Other Information;

Naotes There were no changes in assumptions or benefits during the year.
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Note C; Net Pension Liability — Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Changes in Benefit Terms

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the
measurement period.

Changes in Assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension liability
during the measurcment period,
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CI'TY OFF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

LEOSE Infrastruct. Muni. Court
Alloeation Improvement  Technolopy & - Hamilton Park

Fund Fund Security Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cush & Cash Lquivalents b - $ 187291 % - 5 -

Hotel'Motel Taxes Receivable - - - -
Restricted Assets:

Cash Resiricted for Court Technology & Sceurity - - 57.240 -
Cash Restricted for Park Upkeep & Tmprovemenis - - - 8,013
Cash Rustricted for Police Activities 5,605 - - -
Cash Restricted for Tourism - . B i
Total Assets g 5605 % 187291 § 57240 % 8,013
FUND BALANCES

Restricted for Court Technology & Security - - 57.240 -
Restricted for Park Upkeep & Improvements - - - 805
Restricted for Police Activities 5,603 . -

Restricted for Tourism - - - -
Assigned for Capital Expenditures for Equipment - 187,291 - -

Other Assigned Fund Balance - - y -

Total Fund Balances 5.605 87,291 57.240 8.015

Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances S 5605 S 187291 & 57240 % 8015
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Police Dept.

l'otal

Nonmajor

HoelMotel Locul Drug Insw iuee Governmental
Tax Fund Fund Fund FFunds
$ $ - % 200,066 5 396,957
66,73 - - 66,734
- - 37,240
- - - 8,015
26.244 34,849
185,082 - - 165.082
$ 251,816 % 20244 % 209,666 S 748,877
- - - 57,240
- - 8,015
- 29,244 34,849
251,816 - - 251,816
- - 187,291
- 209,666 209,666
251,816 20244 209,666 TA8.877
% 250,816 % 29244 % 200666 % 748,877
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CITY OF BROWNFIELD, TEXAS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL, FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBLER 30, 2019

REVIENUES:
Taxes:
Hotel/Muotel Tax
[ntergovernmental Revenue & Grants
Charges for Services
Fines
Forfeits
Investment Eurtings
Other Revenue
I'otal Revenues
FXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial
Pubiic Safely:
Poiice
Culture and Recreation:
Parks
Tourism
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deticiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - October 1 {Beginning)

Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending)

LLECSI
Allucation
I'und

b2

792

2,792

3 5,605

56

Inlrastruct,
Improvemen

I'und

58,490
3,086

62,170

435,591
_(434,912)
679

62,855
124,436

S 187,291

Muni. Courl

Technology &

Hamilton Purk

b 57.240

Secrny Fund Fund
S $
4.508
- 260
. _ 4,508 266
1,760 -
3,290
1,760 3,296
2,748 {3.050}
2,748 (3.053h
54,492 11,045
$ 8.01t4



Hatel:Mate!
Tax Fund

13,260

29,723

8§5.612
88,6012

LT

(724,836)

{724,830)

¥ 251,816

Palice Dept,

Local Rrug Insurance
Fund Iand
S - %

- 5.660
1.967 -
1,328 3,230
T 3295 8806
41,630 -
41,630 -
{38,335) 8,896

(38.335) 8,896
67,579 200,77G

$ 29244 %

209,666

Total
Nonmajor
Guvernmentauf
FFunds

S 210433
2,792

5.666

4.508

1.U67

76,604
_3.686
311,656

L,760
41,630

3.296
88,612
135,208

£76.358

435,591
(1.158,718)
(724,157}

(517,799}
1,296,676

5 748877

EXIIBIT 11-2
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